
       PRESCOTT CITY COUNCIL 
                       REGULAR VOTING MEETING 
                       TUESDAY, OCTOBER 13, 2009 
                        PRESCOTT, ARIZONA 
 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR VOTING MEETING OF THE PRESCOTT CITY 
COUNCIL held on TUESDAY, OCTOBER 13, 2009 in the COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
located at CITY HALL 201 SOUTH CORTEZ STREET, Prescott, Arizona. 
 
  

 CALL TO ORDER 
 
 Mayor Wilson called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m.     
 

        INTRODUCTIONS   
 

 INVOCATION: Steve Campbell, President of the Prescott Stake of the Church 
of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints 

 
 President Campbell gave the invocation   
 

  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:   Councilman Bell 
 
 Councilman Bell led the Council and audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

  ROLL CALL:    
 
  PRESENT:     ABSENT: 
  

Mayor Wilson    None 
Councilman Bell      
Councilman Lamerson 
Councilwoman Lopas 
Councilman Luzius 
Councilman Roecker 
Councilwoman Suttles 

 
 SUMMARY OF CURRENT OR RECENT EVENTS 

  
Mr. Norwood notified the audience that Saturday from 9:00 a.m. to 12 p.m. was 
the Prescott Police Department Dump the Prescription Drugs Day. 

  
Mayor Wilson reminded the public that there was a joint meeting of the Prescott 
City Council and the Mayor’s Water Conservation/Safe Yield Committee on 
Thursday, October 15, 2009 at the Prescott Adult Center at 1260 Rosser Street 
on Rainwater Harvesting. Councilman Rodney Glassman from Tucson will 
speak, as they have had national recognition for rainwater conservation with 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – October 13, 2009                                                        Page 2 
 
 

commercial buildings. It will be a public workshop where questions may be asked 
at the end of the workshop.   

  
Councilwoman Suttles said that last Saturday, she, Councilman Roecker and 
Councilman Luzius went out for the Prescott Valley grand opening of their 
library/NAU Yavapai College Wing. She was quite impressed with all that was 
done. The regional relationship between Northern Arizona University and 
Yavapai College is trying to keep some of the area students in town. It is a great 
effort with the project and what it will accomplish.  

  
Councilman Roecker said that it was a spectacular building and quite 
complimentary to the library in Prescott. 

  
Councilman Luzius noted that it was a great facility and designed after Glassford 
Hill. He said that it came in under budget and it was the most enjoyable morning 
he had had in a long time.   

 
He also had good news from CYMPO. The CYMPO administrator, Jodie Rooney, 
spent last week in Globe Arizona where they had a Transportation Enhancement 
Review Committee meeting; Prescott has been awarded $1 million for 
transportation enhancement. It is federal money that will be administered by the 
Arizona Department of Transportation. That will be determined at the next ADOT 
meeting and they will accept the money at that time. It is $1 million for the 
continuation of the White Spar multimodal project which consists of four phases. 
This is the approval for the second phase. The first phase is already in design. 

 
I.    PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
A. Frank Creelman re presentation of petitions to Council (1) to investigate 

SWAT incident; (2) address Sharlot Hall Museum concerns; and (3) 
address re City workers not following OSHA safety guidelines. 

  
Mr. Creelman said that he gave the Council written, formal petitions 
concerning Randy Oaks and what he did to the Marine and he will expect 
answers in 30 days.  

 
He said that many times he sees all the tremendous numbers of public 
workers not using eye protection, who run jack jammers, no ear plugs and 
no dust mask. It violates all of the OSHA rules. A employer has to provide 
proper safety equipment for their employees to use and supervise them to 
ensure that they do.  Also OSHA requires workers to wear the protection 
required of him by his employer. If he does not do it then they can be 
fined.  He does not need people down the road with hearing problems or 
concrete in the lungs.  He will write that up and submit it the next time. 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – October 13, 2009                                                        Page 3 
 
 

Mayor Wilson said that he was having problems reading what 
Mr. Creelman submitted and he did not know how he could respond to it if 
he could not read it. Mr. Creelman said that he would type it over along 
with all of the other ones that he will submit in writing. 
 
Mayor Wilson said that they had to be submitted at the Council meeting. 
Mr. Creelman said that the girl did give the judge a letter from the United 
States government, saying that the vehicle owned by her husband was 
exempt from registration. Judge Markham said he did not have the 
authority to dismiss a ticket.  That is a lie.  It is the judge’s responsibility to 
dismiss false charges. 

 
Mayor Wilson said that he needed something in writing and asked him to 
type up what he submitted at the Council Meeting. Mr. Creelman said that 
he would give him each petition on a page by itself and then the Mayor will 
have 30 days to respond to it. 
 
Mayor Wilson asked when he would get it. Mr. Creelman said as soon as 
he feels better and gets to the typewriter. 

 
B. Larry Bryant, Construction Manager for Spire Engineering, re Demerse 

Avenue project. 
  

Mr. Bryant, 5511 Lemon Mint Lane, commented that there were things left 
unsaid when Mr. Nietupski talked about the Demerse Avenue Project. 
Spire Engineering started this project with the assumption that there was 
no rock in the area, which was concluded by the bid document. Once they 
hit rock, they notified the City asking for additional time. They notified the 
City that they thought the project was going to take additional time and 
more money.   
 
In addition, after the rock was encountered and they started installing the 
water line from Whetstine up to the north end of the project, they 
encountered existing water line that was shown to be in a different place 
than where they actually found it. That took approximately 45 days longer 
than it should have because of the impacts on the existing water line. 

 
They encountered a major delay at the corner of Black Drive and 
Demerse with a telephone manhole being in conflict with the storm drain.  
Their progress was stopped there. They were also impacted at the same 
time with the gas line not being deep enough from Rosser north to the end 
of the project. The gas company just finished the relocation of that.  The 
end date was to be the end of this week but, there are still utility 
companies out there relocating facilities that should have been relocated 
before they ever started the work. 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – October 13, 2009                                                        Page 4 
 
 

The Public Works department did notify each utility that this was going to 
start in 2009.  Notice went to all of the utilities in 2007. None of them ever 
started moving their utilities until after the project started. As a result they 
will be late finishing the project. It is not their desire to be late finishing the 
project. In this case, it was out of their control and they still believe that 
there are issues there that were not known at the time they bid the project. 
They agreed to do the project in the time allotted.  They have not been 
able to perform in that direction.  
 
He said that the problem is that there was not a lot of follow up from 
anyone’s perspective to make sure the utilities were out of the contractor’s 
way before Notice to Proceed was issued. There needs to be another 
process in place to make sure that this does not keep happening.  He has 
lived in Prescott ten years and every major project has been done the 
same way. There are ways to prevent that from happening, to make sure 
that the utilities are located during design and the relocations are done 
prior to the contract being issued. That will stop everyone from being late 
and asking for change orders.   

  
He did ask Councilman Luzius to come out to the project site. He informed 
him of what he believed was the reason they were so far behind. Mr. 
Bryant asked him to look at it and form his own conclusion. That is all he 
asks from all of them; to look into the details of this project. Do not take 
his word for it or Public Works’ word. 

  
Tim Burkeen said that he was representing the Public Works Department. 
 
Mayor Wilson asked him to respond to the request for change in the 
process to make sure the utilities were actually relocated before the Order 
to Proceed was issued. He asked why it did not happen. 

  
Mr. Burkeen said that it did happen. The City sent written notice to all of 
the utilities to relocate their facilities in 2007. Unisource did relocation on a 
portion. Apparently they did not relocate the entire line. Before they bid the 
project, they received written documentation back from the utilities that 
there were no further conflicts with the exception of APS. They could not 
relocate their poles because the City was still acquiring right of way. That 
process continued for some time. They knew that going into this and they 
talked about it at the preconstruction meeting. It took APS much longer 
than anticipated. 

  
Mayor Wilson said that regarding the bid documents not specifying rock in 
the area, he lives in that area and he remembers a house being built on 
Black Drive. They had to blast rock out.  He asked why the bid document 
did not indicate rock. 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – October 13, 2009                                                        Page 5 
 
 

Mr. Burkeen said that is a point of disagreement. Mr. Nietupski responded 
to that claim and refused the claim. He did meet with the president of 
Spire twice in good faith to try and resolve some of the issues. Rock is an 
issue they did not see eye to eye on. There are areas that the contractor 
had legitimate concerns. The Public Works department has responded to 
that particular issue. The correspondence sent back stated that the 
specifications say what they say.  The City and contractor do not agree on 
that issue. 

  
Councilman Lamerson noted that at some point along the line someone 
did some work up there laying water and utility lines and there has got to 
be records of that. He asked why that was not shared prior to starting 
construction. 

  
Mr. Burkeen said that as part of the design process, the engineer acquires 
those as-builts and hires a third firm to go out to pothole and verify that the 
lines are where they are supposed to be. 

  
Councilman Lamerson said that he understood that they had 19 different 
incidents, three or four being water line incidents. He asked why that stuff 
was not known prior to construction. 
 
Mr. Burkeen said that is another point of contention, on those 19 utility 
strikes. The contractor maintains that he had no way of knowing that a 
utility was there. In the specifications, it states that prior to beginning 
construction, all contractors have a responsibility to pothole ahead of time. 
How many of those 19 strikes is a contractor’s fault or beyond his control 
is a matter of disagreement. There are some that they feel were 
completely within his control. 

 
Councilman Lamerson said that this is not a case of pointing the finger. It 
is a case of whether or not they have records of where the utilities are laid. 
If they have those utility records, they should be shared with everyone 
doing the project. 

  
Councilwoman Suttles noted that Mr. Bryant said that he had lived in the 
City of Prescott for ten years. In those ten years he had to have gone up 
and down Demerse.  Mr. Bryant said that he had. 
 
Councilwoman Suttles said that he had to have seen the rock. He had to 
have seen how the houses were in the rocks. The road is about 40 years 
old and he had to know that there was more going on. She asked if he got 
out and walked that area and looked at it to think there might be a problem 
with rock. 

 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – October 13, 2009                                                        Page 6 
 
 

Mr. Bryant answered that he looked at the project for Spire because he 
lives here. He also looked at the bid documents. Prior to the bid, an 
addendum was issued with soil borings. There were over ten of them and 
none of them showed rock. The contractor was given that information and 
told to use it, which Spire did.  He has talked to the second bidder and 
they used the same information and came to the same conclusion, that 
there was no rock there.   

 
Councilwoman Suttles said that she was not in the street construction 
business, but to go up that street, he had to be aware of the rocks. She 
finds it hard that the discussion of rock is even taking place. 

 
She said that the estimate from the City’s engineer was over $4 million; 
Spire came in at a little over $2.5 million, the next was $2.7 million and the 
third was $2.799 million. She said that they all got the same information 
and were all very close with their bids. She asked what Civiltec does for 
the builders. 

 
Mr. Burkeen said that Civiltec was the design engineer that prepared the 
plans to specifications. 

 
Mr. Bryant said that it was his understanding that each Council member 
gets a packet of information before each Council meeting. In that packet 
there is information that is shared about what issues will be brought up. If 
that information is wrong, the decisions they make are going to be 
impacted by the information that they are given.  If a contractor is given 
inaccurate information, their estimate is going to be impacted. It is the 
same thing. 

  
Councilwoman Suttles asked why the City of Prescott would not give the 
correct information for a bid going out on roads. Mr. Burkeen answered 
that when he spoke with Spire’s President, he said they relied on the soil 
boring logs. Part of the problem with the logs is that they are only accurate 
for that six inch hole they punch. Unless they pull up the entire road, they 
will never know exactly where the rock is. They did not originally include 
the soils report with the bid documents, partly for that reason, because 
they can be misleading. At the pre-bid conference, they were asked to 
provide those. They treated it as a public records request; they will provide 
whatever documentation they have. They included an addendum that said 
the boring logs were for informational purposes only; to not use them in 
the bid. 

  
Mr. Norwood suggested that they get together next week when 
Mr. Nietupski is back in town. He will personally be involved in that 
meeting. They do not do this on a daily basis. In the six years he has been 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – October 13, 2009                                                        Page 7 
 
 

at the City he has not been in a debate on a job like this. He has not seen 
any clear documentation on dollar impacts. He will sit in with Mark 
Nietupski, Tim Burkeen and Spire and they will get this resolved. He did 
not feel that is was currently the time or place to continue the discussion. 

 
Mr. Burkeen said that they received documentation yesterday from Spire, 
documenting the costs they claim. 

 
Councilwoman Suttles said that if this contractor is unhappy and comes to 
the Council, there is an exchange. Maybe it should have been 
straightened out before it came to Council. Her concern is that they are 
now brought into this because of a he said/he said.  She does not know 
where it is supposed to be.    

  
Mr. Kidd said that he can answer some of the procedural things. It was 
asked by the contractor to do a presentation to the Council. It was placed 
on the agenda as a presentation. What the City Manager said is correct. 
To get the staff’s input they would meet and do a regular agenda item to 
deal with some of the issues. They will place it on an agenda at the City 
Manager’s discretion, after meeting with the staff. The way that it was 
presented was awkward, because there was no input from the public. 

  
Councilman Luzius said that it is true that Mr. Bryant had called him as a 
citizen of Prescott. He has supervised other City jobs on roads built by the 
City of Prescott.  Councilman Luzius thinks there is something wrong with 
the process before the contract is let and is begun. Mr. Bryant showed him 
the boring results. Clearly there were 14 up and down Demerse and every 
one of them indicated there was no rock. He asked Mr. Bryant if he 
walked the project. They assured him that they did.  When you see rock, it 
does not mean there is rock all over. 

 
If the borings are not something to be used, he asked why the report was 
provided at all.  He thinks they need to investigate what goes on before a 
contract is let. He said that when he was on the site, they came to a gas 
line that was not even on the scope and at least six inches from the 
bottom of the road base. If the contractor is not getting the information that 
he needs, the City needs to investigate what goes on before a contract is 
let so the contractor does get a fair shake. He is not choosing sides but 
said that with what he has been shown, it is clear that the City did not do 
their job. He would like to be in that meeting. 

 
Mr. Norwood said that they would research those issues and get back to 
him. 

  



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – October 13, 2009                                                        Page 8 
 
 

Mr. Roecker asked if APS was done. Mr. Burkeen said that he believed 
they have completed their pole relocation. Mr. Bryant said that they have 
not completed. 
 
Mr. Burkeen said that he does believe that the existing poles still need to 
be removed. He thought that was supposed to happen within the next few 
days. 

  
Councilman Roecker asked if work was proceeding at some level now. 
Mr. Burkeen said yes. 

  
Councilman Roecker asked him to guess when the project will be done. 
Mr. Bryant answered that it was now scheduled to be complete mid to 
latter December, depending on the weather. 

 
Councilman Roecker asked if work continues whether or not a change 
order had been made. Mr. Bryant said that work had been ongoing. They 
have disagreements each day, but it has not stopped their progress. They 
will continue to work until the project is complete. 

 
Mr. Creelman said that he would like to make a public comment. Mayor 
Wilson said that there was no public input on the item. 

 
II. PROCLAMATION 
 

A. October 17, 2009 as American Diabetes Association’s Step Out: Walk to 
Fight Diabetes Day in Prescott. 

  
Councilwoman Suttles read the proclamation and presented it to the 
representative from the American Diabetes Association. The recipient said 
that diabetes is growing every year, with one out of ten adults is getting it. 
 One out of every three children born in 2000 or after that will have 
diabetes in their lifetime if they do not come up with a cure. The walk 
starts at the Yavapai Prescott Indian Tribe with the registration at 7:45 
a.m. The walk begins at 9:00 a.m.   
 
Between the registration and the beginning of the walk, Bucky’s Casino is 
putting on breakfast, made to order. There will be a few announcements 
made and then they start the walk. There will also be a face painter for 
kids, music, a silent auction and raffle.  Registration can be done the 
morning of, or go on line at www.diabetes.org/stepout. She said she has 
had diabetes for 47 years. She is a double amputee because of her 
diabetes. The hat she was wearing is for the new red strider program.  
Anyone registering who has type 1 or type 2 diabetes receives a hat.  All 

http://www.diabetes.org/stepout


Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – October 13, 2009                                                        Page 9 
 
 

of the other walkers can support them and appreciate them and the 
struggle they go through. 

 
III. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

CONSENT ITEMS A THROUGH M LISTED BELOW MAY BE ENACTED BY 
ONE MOTION. ANY ITEM MAY BE REMOVED AND DISCUSSED IF A 
COUNCILMEMBER SO REQUESTS. 

  
COUNCILMAN LAMERSON MADE A MOTION TO APPROVE CONSENT 
AGENDA ITEMS III-A THROUGH III-M; SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN 
ROECKER; PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.  

 
A. Approve expenditure for purchase and installation of an Automated 

License Plate Reader and associated analysis software from PIPS 
Technology, Inc, for a total price of $20,425.00. 

 
B. Approve expenditure of $68,524.85 to Arizona Emergency Products, for 

emergency vehicle equipment builds relating to the recently-purchased 
police vehicles. 

 
C.  Adopt Resolution No. 3991-1021 – A resolution of the Mayor and Council 

of the City of Prescott, Yavapai County, Arizona approving the First 
Amendment to the Intergovernmental Agreement Dated May 1, 2003, 
which established the Central Yavapai Metropolitan Planning Organization 
(CYMPO), providing for addition of the Town of Dewey-Humboldt as a 
participating agency and amendment of the Planning Area Boundary to 
include Dewey-Humboldt. 

 
D.  Approve Water Service Agreement with Highgate Prescott, LLP located on 

Blooming Hills Drive for an allocation of 10.8 acre-feet annually. 
 
E. Approve Special Use Permit for modifications to an existing 

telecommunications site located at 218 East Willis Street, Zoning is 
Business Regional (BR), Property owner: Roger Brown; Applicant: 
Brandon Brown, reliant Land Services for Verizon Wireless. APN: 113-16-
032. 

 
F. Approve Second Time Extension for the Cloudstone Revised Preliminary 

Plat Unit II-A Planned Area Development for 78 condominium units on 
±5.5 acres located at the southwest corner of Rosser Street and Blooming 
Hills Drive. (SP04-002). 

 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – October 13, 2009                                                        Page 10 
 
 

G. Award bid and contract to CLM Earthmovers, Inc. for the Yavapai College/ 
Sheldon Street Right-of-way Landscape Project in an amount not to 
exceed $53,081.00. 

 
H. Approve Authorization for Services #5 with Z&H Engineering in the 

amount of $24,140.00 for conducting an update of the Signage, Marking, 
and Lighting Plan at Ernest A. Love Field. 

 
I. Approve payment to Arizona Public Service Company (APS) for 

installation of a power pole on Indian Hill in an amount not to exceed 
$24,162.00. 

 
J. Adopt Ordinance No. 4719-1016 – An ordinance of the Mayor and Council 

of the City of Prescott, Yavapai County, Arizona, authorizing the purchase 
of real property belonging to the Rogers-Chemas Trust for Bradshaw 
Drive right-of-way. 

 
K. Adopt Resolution No. 3992-1022 – A resolution of the Mayor and Council 

of the City of Prescott, Yavapai County, Arizona, authorizing the City of 
Prescott to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the State of 
Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT) to provide for the Granite 
Dells Parkway SR 89A Traffic Interchange Project, accepting $1,000,000 
from ADOT for project administration during construction and authorizing 
the Mayor and staff to take any and all steps necessary to accomplish the 
above. 

 
L. Approve Settlement in Bennett v. City of Prescott in the amount of 

$50,000.00. 
 

M. Approve minutes of the Prescott City Council Regular Voting Meeting of 
September 22, 2009 and the Joint Study Session/Special Meeting of 
October 6, 2009. 

 
IV.   REGULAR AGENDA 

 
A. Public Hearing and consideration of a liquor license application submitted 

by Mary Elizabeth Whipple, applicant for Firehouse Kitchen for a new 
Series 12, Restaurant, license for Firehouse Kitchen located at 220 
Goodwin, Suite 101. 

 
Ms. Burke said that this was a new application at Firehouse Kitchen 
located at 220 Goodwin Street. She said that the property had been 
posted and the City had received no public input and there was a 
representative present for any questions that may arise. 

 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – October 13, 2009                                                        Page 11 
 
 

 
COUNCILWOMAN SUTTLES MOVED TO CLOSE THE PUBLIC 
HEARING; SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN ROECKER; PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY.  

 
COUNCILWOMAN SUTTLES MOVED TO APPROVE THE LIQUOR 
LICENSE APPLICATION SUBMITTED BY MARY ELIZABETH 
WHIPPLE, APPLICANT FOR FIREHOUSE KITCHEN FOR A NEW 
SERIES 12, RESTAURANT, LICENSE FOR FIREHOUSE KITCHEN 
LOCATED AT 220 GOODWIN, SUITE 101; SECONDED BY 
COUNCILMAN LUZIUS; PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
B.  Approval of Supplemental Agreement No. 4 to Contract No. 07-115 with 

Parsons Transportation Group, for engineering post design services for 
the SR89A - Granite Dells Parkway Project in an amount not to exceed 
$315,612.00. 

   
Mr. Tkach presented the item and said he was available for questions. 

 
 Councilwoman Suttles noted that she asked to have this item pulled from the 

consent agenda because she had a few questions. She asked if this was 
the fourth change in the agreement with Parsons. Mr. Tkach answered in 
the affirmative.      
 
Councilwoman Suttles asked if the first contract for engineering was in 
November of 2006. Mr. Tkach said that the first contract was for 
conceptual design. The design report concept locks in what they are 
doing. There are monies that had to be expended to come up with a blue 
print for how they were going to build the project. 
 
Councilwoman Suttles noted that it said that ADOT and the City required 
changes in post design service. She asked why they had to spend 
another $315,000 on a project that has not quite started.  

 
  Mr. Tkach said ADOT required changes were for the slopes which went 

from 2:1 to 3:1 to 4:1 and back to 3:1. When that is done, it impacts 
drainage, the easements, some of the cut and fill quantities, which causes 
a domino effect.  They had no control over ADOT’s request to do that.    

 
Councilwoman Suttles asked if the changes were made because they did 
not know where the intersection was going to be or if they just could not 
decide. Mr. Tkach said that they could not decide.  To date, he still does 
not believe the Design Report Concept has been signed. ADOT had some 
changes and the City had some changes. They put in jack and bores for 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – October 13, 2009                                                        Page 12 
 
 

sewer and water and they put in some additional lining at Center Point 
East and Granite Dells Plaza. 

 
Councilwoman Suttles asked if he did that as the project progressed. 
Mr. Tkach said that it was moving forward. Typically they spend about 
20% of their effort wrapping up the last 5-10% of the design. They cut a 
year out of the design schedule. They were moving quickly to try to wrap 
up all of the loose ends. This was one of the loose ends.  They wanted to 
take advantage of the economy of scale of having a contractor out there, 
and already having an engineer on board to do that design. 

  
Councilman Bell commented that the total amount of money, including this 
change order, would be about $2.7 million that they paid Parsons, 
according to Mr. Nietupski. They know that it is a high percentage, about 
16% of the total project. They usually do not see that in engineering 
projects. He asked if the City should be responsible when ADOT makes 
these changes. 

 
Mr. Tkach said that the way the process is supposed to work is that   
ADOT would approve the Design Report Concept and then they are 
locked in to the blue print of what they are going to build.  In this case, 
ADOT changed their minds on several occasions and the City does not 
have any say when they change their minds. Any time that they have one 
agency designing to another agencies standards, and then trying to 
represent two developers interests and get some of that infrastructure put 
in, it is reasonable that there would be a higher percentage on the design 
because they are trying to factor all of those things in, plus trying to cut a 
year out of the design. It is on the high end, but there are extenuating 
circumstances that attribute to that. 

 
Councilman Bell said that he hates to have the City be at the mercy of 
ADOT changes, when they do not do their due diligence up front. 
Mr. Tkach said that he could appreciate the frustration and they are trying 
hard to develop a good relationship with them. Councilman Bell said that 
he understood and that it was important. 

 
Councilman Lamerson said that he was confident that if these changes 
were not necessary from a safety and maintenance issue, Mr. Tkach 
would not be asking for them. This is the fourth change in the design and 
they have not even started to build. He asked if there are things that come 
along, as they are progressing, that say they better change the design, 
because if they did it the way they were going to, the impact may be 
different. He asked what was going on with these types of projects where 
new designs are needed. He said that his job was to figure out how to do 
these jobs without having these problems. 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – October 13, 2009                                                        Page 13 
 
 
  Mr. Tkach answered that when they have one agency designing to 

another agencies standards, it was problematic. Not having ADOT sign 
the Design Report Concept was problematic.  It is unfortunate. These do 
come up during the course of the design. This was a complicated project.  

   
Councilman Bell asked if he thought this would be the last change order.  
Mr. Tkach said yes.   

  
Councilman Roecker asked what would happen if they did not pay it, if it 
does not get approved. Mr. Tkach said that they would have to solicit 
another engineer to provide those services. It would probably be more 
expensive because they would be on a learning curve. 

  
Councilman Luzius said that according to the memo, Parsons Group 
service was for SR 89 and the Granite Dells Parkway project. He asked if 
that was for Granite Dells Parkway project or was it for Side Road. 

 
Mr. Tkach said that it was both ADOT and City right of way. They have 
Granite Dells Estates and Center Point East and Side Road. They are all 
within their street classification. They also have the ADOT roundabouts, 
the on and off ramps, which are the improvements to the actual corridor. 

 
Councilman Luzius clarified for the public that it is for Side Road 
interchange. Mr. Tkach answered that it is where the Side Road 
interchange had been contemplated. It includes some improvements to 
the ADOT infrastructure, some roundabouts and the City will be building 
some principle arterial roads – Center Point East and Granite Dells Plaza. 

 
Councilman Luzius said that back when 89A was built, seven to eight 
years ago, Tom Foster was the ADOT representative in Prescott at the 
time.  The question was posed why there was not an interchange at Side 
Road. His answer was that the state was not going to build one and it 
would probably be 20 years before something needed to be done. That 
was eight years ago and now the City is spending $2.5 million dollars just 
to design the interchange which is ultimately going to cost another $17 
million. 

 
He understands that the state is contributing $1 million. The City is 
hamstrung. The ADOT seems to change their mind at a whim and then 
the citizens have to pay for it. They have no choice but to approve this. 

 
Councilwoman Suttles asked if this engineering service change has 
anything to do with the bid that goes out. Mr. Tkach said that it was 
separate. When they hire an engineering firm to provide them with 
contract documentations; this would be an amendment to their contract.  If 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – October 13, 2009                                                        Page 14 
 
 

there are changes in the design then they have an engineer on record 
that can go back and effect those changes. 

  
Mr. Creelman, 510 Copper Basin Rd. #44, asked what the need was. 
There is nothing going in there, and there is a major issue about water. 
 
Mayor Wilson said that it was off agenda. Mr. Creelman asked if this was 
not Side Kick Road. Mayor Wilson said that it was about an engineering 
study. 
 
Mr. Creelman said that maybe they just need to cancel the whole thing. It 
has turned into a nightmare for everybody and they do not even need it. 

  
COUNCILMAN LUZIUS MADE A MOTION TO APPROVE 
SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 4 TO CONTRACT NO. 07-115 
WITH PARSONS TRANSPORTATION GROUP, FOR ENGINEERING 
POST DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE SR89A-GRANITE DELLS 
PARKWAY PROJECT IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $315,612.00; 
SECONDED BY LORA LOPAS; PASSED 6-1 WITH COUNCILWOMAN 
SUTTLES CASTING THE DISSENTING VOTE. 
 

B. Appointment of Councilwoman Lora Lopas as the Council’s voting 
representative member to the Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City 
Committee. 

  
Mayor said that this was a result of Councilman Bell’s resignation and 
asking for a replacement before the end of his term so that there was a 
good transition.   

  
Councilman Bell said he had discussed this with the Centennial 
Committee and they requested that Lora Lopas be his replacement.  He 
said that he thought that they should honor that request and that she 
would make a fine representative. 
 
Councilwoman Lopas said she was truly honored to be on this committee. 
It was exciting for someone who was born and raised in Arizona and she 
was eager to get to work with them. 

    
COUNCILMAN BELL MOVED TO APPOINT COUNCILWOMAN LORA 
LOPAS AS THE COUNCIL’S VOTING REPRESENTATIVE MEMBER TO 
THE PRESCOTT: THE ARIZONA CENTENNIAL CITY COMMITTEE; 
SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN LUZIUS; PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – October 13, 2009                                                        Page 15 
 
 
 D.* Adoption of Resolution No. 3993-1023 – A resolution of the Mayor 

and Council of the City of Prescott, Yavapai County, Arizona, 
authorizing the City of Prescott to enter into a Grant-in-Aid Financial 
Agreement on behalf of the Arizona Wildfire and Incident 
Management Academy with the Tohono O’Odham Nation, 
acceptance of a $75,000 grant from it for general operation expenses 
for the Arizona Wildfire Academy at ERAU and authorizing the Mayor 
and staff to take any and all steps necessary to accomplish the 
above. 

  
Chief Willis apologized for this being late to the agenda.  He found out 
about it late last week and there was a deadline for acceptance of this. 
They have to notify the grantor by Friday.  

 
The City of Prescott has played host to The Arizona Wildfire Academy, at 
Embry Riddle Aeronautical University, for the last 7 years. The Arizona 
Wildfire Academy brings about 1,000 firefighters in from around the nation, 
for a one week stint.  It is usually in March and gives the City an infusion 
of people seeing their City. It is considered one of the premier Wild Fire 
and Incident Management Training events in the nation.  

 
A few years ago the City got into a financial arrangement with the Arizona 
Wildfire Academy where they set up an account for cost recovery. It has 
never cost the City of Prescott any money. The Arizona Wildfire Academy 
applied to the Tohono O’Odham Nation for a grant for general operating 
expenses for $75,000. They received word last week that they have 
received the grant. The stipulation was that it be overseen by a city 
government or state government.  
 
They are a 501C3 organization and there is a pass through agreement.   
The City’s Finance Department already has a grant account. Arizona 
Wildfire Academy will comply with all purchasing and expenditure 
procedures. He was asking Council to accept the grant on behalf of the 
Arizona Wildfire Academy and let the City pass the money through to 
them through the Tohono O’Odham Nation. 

 
Mayor Wilson said that it was excellent news. 

  
COUNCILMAN LUZIUS MADE A MOTION TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 
3933-1023; SECONDED BY COUNCILWOMAN SUTTLES; PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
 
 
 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – October 13, 2009                                                        Page 16 
 
 
 DE.* Recess into Executive Session. 

  
 COUNCILMAN ROECKER MADE A MOTION TO RECESS INTO 

EXECUTIVE SESSION; SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN BELL; 
PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
The Regular Voting Meeting of October 13, 2009 recessed at 3:59 p.m.  

 
EF.* EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

1.* Discussion or consultation for legal advice with the attorney or 
attorneys of the public body pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3). 

 
1a. Legal claim pertaining to The Crossings at Willow Creek. 

 
2.* Discussion or consultation with the attorneys of the public 

body in order to consider its position and instruct its attorneys 
regarding the public body's position regarding contracts that 
are the subject of negotiations, in pending or contemplated 
litigation or in settlement discussions conducted in order to 
avoid or resolve litigation, pursuant to ARS Section 38-
431.03(A)(4). 

 
  a.*  Asphalt Paving & Supply, Inc. v. Granite Dells Estates 

Properties, Inc., Granite Dells Estates Properties II, Inc.; 
City of Prescott. 

 
V.* POST EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 A. Consideration of Settlement Agreement in Asphalt Paving & Supply, 

Inc. v. Granite Dells Estates Properties, Inc., Granite Dells Estates 
Properties II, Inc.; City of Prescott. 

  
 The Prescott City Council reconvened into Open Session at 4:52 p.m. at 

which time Mr. Kidd explained that they were proposing a settlement to 
the lawsuit. He said that a few members of the Council met with 
representatives of the construction companies involved, and as a result of 
that there has been a global settlement.  

 
 Mr. Kidd said that there may still be a few word changes but the terms 

have been agreed upon, and those are that all parties will bear their own 
attorneys fees. GDEP will contract with AP&S and will then have a change 
order that allows the City of Prescott to take over administration of the 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – October 13, 2009                                                        Page 17 
 
 

project. There would be no claims going back on the development 
agreement against the City.  

 
 Michael Allen Peters, 640 West Lee Blvd, said that it was good to have 

resolution of a pending issue, but without having the benefit of reading the 
entire judgment his comment was that the Council got them into this 
problem by giving away an inherent contractual right to GDEP. As a result 
of that problem, the City is now incurring over $125,000.00 in attorneys 
fees, plus costs, and they have wasted the taxpayers money.  

 
 He said that it was good to have resolution but in this case, they thought 

that to walk away when the judge is close to giving the City their attorneys 
fees was not right. 

 
 Mayor Wilson said that the downside of not settling is that they could be in 

appeals for another year and run up another bill for attorneys fees. He 
said that they chose to do what they thought was best. 

 
 Mr. Peters said that Mr. Kidd had previously told them that the appeal 

would be handled in house so there would not be any more costs to 
handle the appeal. 

 
 COUNCILMAN LUZIUS MOVED TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR AND 

CITY ATTORNEY, ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF PRESCOTT, TO 
ENTER INTO A SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT WITH PLANTIFFS AND 
CO-DEFENDANTS/CROSS-CLAIMANTS AND TO SIGN SUCH LEGAL 
DOCUMENTS AS MAY BE NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE 
SETTLEMENT; SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN ROECKER; PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
VVI.* ADJOURNMENT 

   
 There being no further business to be discussed, the Regular Voting Meeting 

of the Prescott City Council held October 13, 2009, adjourned at 5:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       JACK D. WILSON, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 



Prescott City Council  
Regular Voting Meeting – October 13, 2009                                                        Page 18 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
ELIZABETH A. BURKE, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of 
the Regular Voting Meeting of the City Council of the City of Prescott, Arizona held on 
the 13th day of October, 2009. I further certify the meeting was duly called and held and 
that a quorum was present. 
 
Dated this ____ day of ___________________, 2009. 
 
 AFFIX 
       CITY SEAL  
       ________________________________  

      ELIZABETH A. BURKE, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Prescott City Council 


Regular Voting Meeting – October 13, 2009                                                        Page 2




      PRESCOTT CITY COUNCIL


                      REGULAR VOTING MEETING



                      TUESDAY, OCTOBER 13, 2009



                       PRESCOTT, ARIZONA


MINUTES OF THE REGULAR VOTING MEETING OF THE PRESCOTT CITY COUNCIL held on TUESDAY, OCTOBER 13, 2009 in the COUNCIL CHAMBERS located at CITY HALL 201 SOUTH CORTEZ STREET, Prescott, Arizona.


· CALL TO ORDER



Mayor Wilson called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m.    


(        INTRODUCTIONS 


(
INVOCATION:
Steve Campbell, President of the Prescott Stake of the Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints


President Campbell gave the invocation  

( 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 Councilman Bell


Councilman Bell led the Council and audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.


( 
ROLL CALL:






PRESENT:




ABSENT:

Mayor Wilson



None

Councilman Bell






Councilman Lamerson


Councilwoman Lopas


Councilman Luzius


Councilman Roecker

Councilwoman Suttles

· SUMMARY OF CURRENT OR RECENT EVENTS

Mr. Norwood notified the audience that Saturday from 9:00 a.m. to 12 p.m. was the Prescott Police Department Dump the Prescription Drugs Day.

Mayor Wilson reminded the public that there was a joint meeting of the Prescott City Council and the Mayor’s Water Conservation/Safe Yield Committee on Thursday, October 15, 2009 at the Prescott Adult Center at 1260 Rosser Street on Rainwater Harvesting. Councilman Rodney Glassman from Tucson will speak, as they have had national recognition for rainwater conservation with commercial buildings. It will be a public workshop where questions may be asked at the end of the workshop.  

Councilwoman Suttles said that last Saturday, she, Councilman Roecker and Councilman Luzius went out for the Prescott Valley grand opening of their library/NAU Yavapai College Wing. She was quite impressed with all that was done. The regional relationship between Northern Arizona University and Yavapai College is trying to keep some of the area students in town. It is a great effort with the project and what it will accomplish. 

Councilman Roecker said that it was a spectacular building and quite complimentary to the library in Prescott.

Councilman Luzius noted that it was a great facility and designed after Glassford Hill. He said that it came in under budget and it was the most enjoyable morning he had had in a long time.  


He also had good news from CYMPO. The CYMPO administrator, Jodie Rooney, spent last week in Globe Arizona where they had a Transportation Enhancement Review Committee meeting; Prescott has been awarded $1 million for transportation enhancement. It is federal money that will be administered by the Arizona Department of Transportation. That will be determined at the next ADOT meeting and they will accept the money at that time. It is $1 million for the continuation of the White Spar multimodal project which consists of four phases. This is the approval for the second phase. The first phase is already in design.


I.   
PUBLIC COMMENTS

A.
Frank Creelman re presentation of petitions to Council (1) to investigate SWAT incident; (2) address Sharlot Hall Museum concerns; and (3) address re City workers not following OSHA safety guidelines.


Mr. Creelman said that he gave the Council written, formal petitions concerning Randy Oaks and what he did to the Marine and he will expect answers in 30 days. 


He said that many times he sees all the tremendous numbers of public workers not using eye protection, who run jack jammers, no ear plugs and no dust mask. It violates all of the OSHA rules. A employer has to provide proper safety equipment for their employees to use and supervise them to ensure that they do.  Also OSHA requires workers to wear the protection required of him by his employer. If he does not do it then they can be fined.  He does not need people down the road with hearing problems or concrete in the lungs.  He will write that up and submit it the next time.


Mayor Wilson said that he was having problems reading what Mr. Creelman submitted and he did not know how he could respond to it if he could not read it. Mr. Creelman said that he would type it over along with all of the other ones that he will submit in writing.

Mayor Wilson said that they had to be submitted at the Council meeting. Mr. Creelman said that the girl did give the judge a letter from the United States government, saying that the vehicle owned by her husband was exempt from registration. Judge Markham said he did not have the authority to dismiss a ticket.  That is a lie.  It is the judge’s responsibility to dismiss false charges.

Mayor Wilson said that he needed something in writing and asked him to type up what he submitted at the Council Meeting. Mr. Creelman said that he would give him each petition on a page by itself and then the Mayor will have 30 days to respond to it.


Mayor Wilson asked when he would get it. Mr. Creelman said as soon as he feels better and gets to the typewriter.


B. Larry Bryant, Construction Manager for Spire Engineering, re Demerse Avenue project.

Mr. Bryant, 5511 Lemon Mint Lane, commented that there were things left unsaid when Mr. Nietupski talked about the Demerse Avenue Project. Spire Engineering started this project with the assumption that there was no rock in the area, which was concluded by the bid document. Once they hit rock, they notified the City asking for additional time. They notified the City that they thought the project was going to take additional time and more money.  

In addition, after the rock was encountered and they started installing the water line from Whetstine up to the north end of the project, they encountered existing water line that was shown to be in a different place than where they actually found it. That took approximately 45 days longer than it should have because of the impacts on the existing water line.


They encountered a major delay at the corner of Black Drive and Demerse with a telephone manhole being in conflict with the storm drain.  Their progress was stopped there. They were also impacted at the same time with the gas line not being deep enough from Rosser north to the end of the project. The gas company just finished the relocation of that.  The end date was to be the end of this week but, there are still utility companies out there relocating facilities that should have been relocated before they ever started the work.


The Public Works department did notify each utility that this was going to start in 2009.  Notice went to all of the utilities in 2007. None of them ever started moving their utilities until after the project started. As a result they will be late finishing the project. It is not their desire to be late finishing the project. In this case, it was out of their control and they still believe that there are issues there that were not known at the time they bid the project. They agreed to do the project in the time allotted.  They have not been able to perform in that direction. 

He said that the problem is that there was not a lot of follow up from anyone’s perspective to make sure the utilities were out of the contractor’s way before Notice to Proceed was issued. There needs to be another process in place to make sure that this does not keep happening.  He has lived in Prescott ten years and every major project has been done the same way. There are ways to prevent that from happening, to make sure that the utilities are located during design and the relocations are done prior to the contract being issued. That will stop everyone from being late and asking for change orders.  


He did ask Councilman Luzius to come out to the project site. He informed him of what he believed was the reason they were so far behind. Mr. Bryant asked him to look at it and form his own conclusion. That is all he asks from all of them; to look into the details of this project. Do not take his word for it or Public Works’ word.


Tim Burkeen said that he was representing the Public Works Department.


Mayor Wilson asked him to respond to the request for change in the process to make sure the utilities were actually relocated before the Order to Proceed was issued. He asked why it did not happen.

Mr. Burkeen said that it did happen. The City sent written notice to all of the utilities to relocate their facilities in 2007. Unisource did relocation on a portion. Apparently they did not relocate the entire line. Before they bid the project, they received written documentation back from the utilities that there were no further conflicts with the exception of APS. They could not relocate their poles because the City was still acquiring right of way. That process continued for some time. They knew that going into this and they talked about it at the preconstruction meeting. It took APS much longer than anticipated.


Mayor Wilson said that regarding the bid documents not specifying rock in the area, he lives in that area and he remembers a house being built on Black Drive. They had to blast rock out.  He asked why the bid document did not indicate rock.

Mr. Burkeen said that is a point of disagreement. Mr. Nietupski responded to that claim and refused the claim. He did meet with the president of Spire twice in good faith to try and resolve some of the issues. Rock is an issue they did not see eye to eye on. There are areas that the contractor had legitimate concerns. The Public Works department has responded to that particular issue. The correspondence sent back stated that the specifications say what they say.  The City and contractor do not agree on that issue.


Councilman Lamerson noted that at some point along the line someone did some work up there laying water and utility lines and there has got to be records of that. He asked why that was not shared prior to starting construction.


Mr. Burkeen said that as part of the design process, the engineer acquires those as-builts and hires a third firm to go out to pothole and verify that the lines are where they are supposed to be.


Councilman Lamerson said that he understood that they had 19 different incidents, three or four being water line incidents. He asked why that stuff was not known prior to construction.

Mr. Burkeen said that is another point of contention, on those 19 utility strikes. The contractor maintains that he had no way of knowing that a utility was there. In the specifications, it states that prior to beginning construction, all contractors have a responsibility to pothole ahead of time. How many of those 19 strikes is a contractor’s fault or beyond his control is a matter of disagreement. There are some that they feel were completely within his control.

Councilman Lamerson said that this is not a case of pointing the finger. It is a case of whether or not they have records of where the utilities are laid. If they have those utility records, they should be shared with everyone doing the project.


Councilwoman Suttles noted that Mr. Bryant said that he had lived in the City of Prescott for ten years. In those ten years he had to have gone up and down Demerse.  Mr. Bryant said that he had.


Councilwoman Suttles said that he had to have seen the rock. He had to have seen how the houses were in the rocks. The road is about 40 years old and he had to know that there was more going on. She asked if he got out and walked that area and looked at it to think there might be a problem with rock.

Mr. Bryant answered that he looked at the project for Spire because he lives here. He also looked at the bid documents. Prior to the bid, an addendum was issued with soil borings. There were over ten of them and none of them showed rock. The contractor was given that information and told to use it, which Spire did.  He has talked to the second bidder and they used the same information and came to the same conclusion, that there was no rock there.  


Councilwoman Suttles said that she was not in the street construction business, but to go up that street, he had to be aware of the rocks. She finds it hard that the discussion of rock is even taking place.


She said that the estimate from the City’s engineer was over $4 million; Spire came in at a little over $2.5 million, the next was $2.7 million and the third was $2.799 million. She said that they all got the same information and were all very close with their bids. She asked what Civiltec does for the builders.

Mr. Burkeen said that Civiltec was the design engineer that prepared the plans to specifications.

Mr. Bryant said that it was his understanding that each Council member gets a packet of information before each Council meeting. In that packet there is information that is shared about what issues will be brought up. If that information is wrong, the decisions they make are going to be impacted by the information that they are given.  If a contractor is given inaccurate information, their estimate is going to be impacted. It is the same thing.


Councilwoman Suttles asked why the City of Prescott would not give the correct information for a bid going out on roads. Mr. Burkeen answered that when he spoke with Spire’s President, he said they relied on the soil boring logs. Part of the problem with the logs is that they are only accurate for that six inch hole they punch. Unless they pull up the entire road, they will never know exactly where the rock is. They did not originally include the soils report with the bid documents, partly for that reason, because they can be misleading. At the pre-bid conference, they were asked to provide those. They treated it as a public records request; they will provide whatever documentation they have. They included an addendum that said the boring logs were for informational purposes only; to not use them in the bid.

Mr. Norwood suggested that they get together next week when Mr. Nietupski is back in town. He will personally be involved in that meeting. They do not do this on a daily basis. In the six years he has been at the City he has not been in a debate on a job like this. He has not seen any clear documentation on dollar impacts. He will sit in with Mark Nietupski, Tim Burkeen and Spire and they will get this resolved. He did not feel that is was currently the time or place to continue the discussion.

Mr. Burkeen said that they received documentation yesterday from Spire, documenting the costs they claim.


Councilwoman Suttles said that if this contractor is unhappy and comes to the Council, there is an exchange. Maybe it should have been straightened out before it came to Council. Her concern is that they are now brought into this because of a he said/he said.  She does not know where it is supposed to be.   


Mr. Kidd said that he can answer some of the procedural things. It was asked by the contractor to do a presentation to the Council. It was placed on the agenda as a presentation. What the City Manager said is correct. To get the staff’s input they would meet and do a regular agenda item to deal with some of the issues. They will place it on an agenda at the City Manager’s discretion, after meeting with the staff. The way that it was presented was awkward, because there was no input from the public.

Councilman Luzius said that it is true that Mr. Bryant had called him as a citizen of Prescott. He has supervised other City jobs on roads built by the City of Prescott.  Councilman Luzius thinks there is something wrong with the process before the contract is let and is begun. Mr. Bryant showed him the boring results. Clearly there were 14 up and down Demerse and every one of them indicated there was no rock. He asked Mr. Bryant if he walked the project. They assured him that they did.  When you see rock, it does not mean there is rock all over.


If the borings are not something to be used, he asked why the report was provided at all.  He thinks they need to investigate what goes on before a contract is let. He said that when he was on the site, they came to a gas line that was not even on the scope and at least six inches from the bottom of the road base. If the contractor is not getting the information that he needs, the City needs to investigate what goes on before a contract is let so the contractor does get a fair shake. He is not choosing sides but said that with what he has been shown, it is clear that the City did not do their job. He would like to be in that meeting.

Mr. Norwood said that they would research those issues and get back to him.


Mr. Roecker asked if APS was done. Mr. Burkeen said that he believed they have completed their pole relocation. Mr. Bryant said that they have not completed.


Mr. Burkeen said that he does believe that the existing poles still need to be removed. He thought that was supposed to happen within the next few days.


Councilman Roecker asked if work was proceeding at some level now. Mr. Burkeen said yes.


Councilman Roecker asked him to guess when the project will be done. Mr. Bryant answered that it was now scheduled to be complete mid to latter December, depending on the weather.

Councilman Roecker asked if work continues whether or not a change order had been made. Mr. Bryant said that work had been ongoing. They have disagreements each day, but it has not stopped their progress. They will continue to work until the project is complete.

Mr. Creelman said that he would like to make a public comment. Mayor Wilson said that there was no public input on the item.

II.
PROCLAMATION

A. October 17, 2009 as American Diabetes Association’s Step Out: Walk to Fight Diabetes Day in Prescott.

Councilwoman Suttles read the proclamation and presented it to the representative from the American Diabetes Association. The recipient said that diabetes is growing every year, with one out of ten adults is getting it.  One out of every three children born in 2000 or after that will have diabetes in their lifetime if they do not come up with a cure. The walk starts at the Yavapai Prescott Indian Tribe with the registration at 7:45 a.m. The walk begins at 9:00 a.m.  

Between the registration and the beginning of the walk, Bucky’s Casino is putting on breakfast, made to order. There will be a few announcements made and then they start the walk. There will also be a face painter for kids, music, a silent auction and raffle.  Registration can be done the morning of, or go on line at www.diabetes.org/stepout. She said she has had diabetes for 47 years. She is a double amputee because of her diabetes. The hat she was wearing is for the new red strider program.  Anyone registering who has type 1 or type 2 diabetes receives a hat.  All of the other walkers can support them and appreciate them and the struggle they go through.

III.
CONSENT AGENDA

CONSENT ITEMS A THROUGH M LISTED BELOW MAY BE ENACTED BY ONE MOTION. ANY ITEM MAY BE REMOVED AND DISCUSSED IF A COUNCILMEMBER SO REQUESTS.

COUNCILMAN LAMERSON MADE A MOTION TO APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS III-A THROUGH III-M; SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN ROECKER; PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 


A.
Approve expenditure for purchase and installation of an Automated License Plate Reader and associated analysis software from PIPS Technology, Inc, for a total price of $20,425.00.


B.
Approve expenditure of $68,524.85 to Arizona Emergency Products, for emergency vehicle equipment builds relating to the recently-purchased police vehicles.

C. 
Adopt Resolution No. 3991-1021 – A resolution of the Mayor and Council of the City of Prescott, Yavapai County, Arizona approving the First Amendment to the Intergovernmental Agreement Dated May 1, 2003, which established the Central Yavapai Metropolitan Planning Organization (CYMPO), providing for addition of the Town of Dewey-Humboldt as a participating agency and amendment of the Planning Area Boundary to include Dewey-Humboldt.


D. 
Approve Water Service Agreement with Highgate Prescott, LLP located on Blooming Hills Drive for an allocation of 10.8 acre-feet annually.

E.
Approve Special Use Permit for modifications to an existing telecommunications site located at 218 East Willis Street, Zoning is Business Regional (BR), Property owner: Roger Brown; Applicant: Brandon Brown, reliant Land Services for Verizon Wireless. APN: 113-16-032.


F.
Approve Second Time Extension for the Cloudstone Revised Preliminary Plat Unit II-A Planned Area Development for 78 condominium units on ±5.5 acres located at the southwest corner of Rosser Street and Blooming Hills Drive. (SP04-002).

G.
Award bid and contract to CLM Earthmovers, Inc. for the Yavapai College/ Sheldon Street Right-of-way Landscape Project in an amount not to exceed $53,081.00.


H.
Approve Authorization for Services #5 with Z&H Engineering in the amount of $24,140.00 for conducting an update of the Signage, Marking, and Lighting Plan at Ernest A. Love Field.


I.
Approve payment to Arizona Public Service Company (APS) for installation of a power pole on Indian Hill in an amount not to exceed $24,162.00.


J.
Adopt Ordinance No. 4719-1016 – An ordinance of the Mayor and Council of the City of Prescott, Yavapai County, Arizona, authorizing the purchase of real property belonging to the Rogers-Chemas Trust for Bradshaw Drive right-of-way.


K.
Adopt Resolution No. 3992-1022 – A resolution of the Mayor and Council of the City of Prescott, Yavapai County, Arizona, authorizing the City of Prescott to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the State of Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT) to provide for the Granite Dells Parkway SR 89A Traffic Interchange Project, accepting $1,000,000 from ADOT for project administration during construction and authorizing the Mayor and staff to take any and all steps necessary to accomplish the above.


L.
Approve Settlement in Bennett v. City of Prescott in the amount of $50,000.00.


M.
Approve minutes of the Prescott City Council Regular Voting Meeting of September 22, 2009 and the Joint Study Session/Special Meeting of October 6, 2009.

IV.  
REGULAR AGENDA


A. Public Hearing and consideration of a liquor license application submitted by Mary Elizabeth Whipple, applicant for Firehouse Kitchen for a new Series 12, Restaurant, license for Firehouse Kitchen located at 220 Goodwin, Suite 101.


Ms. Burke said that this was a new application at Firehouse Kitchen located at 220 Goodwin Street. She said that the property had been posted and the City had received no public input and there was a representative present for any questions that may arise.

COUNCILWOMAN SUTTLES MOVED TO CLOSE THE PUBLIC HEARING; SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN ROECKER; PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 


COUNCILWOMAN SUTTLES MOVED TO APPROVE THE LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION SUBMITTED BY MARY ELIZABETH WHIPPLE, APPLICANT FOR FIREHOUSE KITCHEN FOR A NEW SERIES 12, RESTAURANT, LICENSE FOR FIREHOUSE KITCHEN LOCATED AT 220 GOODWIN, SUITE 101; SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN LUZIUS; PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

B. 
Approval of Supplemental Agreement No. 4 to Contract No. 07-115 with Parsons Transportation Group, for engineering post design services for the SR89A - Granite Dells Parkway Project in an amount not to exceed $315,612.00.


Mr. Tkach presented the item and said he was available for questions.


Councilwoman Suttles noted that she asked to have this item pulled from the consent agenda because she had a few questions. She asked if this was the fourth change in the agreement with Parsons. Mr. Tkach answered in the affirmative.     

Councilwoman Suttles asked if the first contract for engineering was in November of 2006. Mr. Tkach said that the first contract was for conceptual design. The design report concept locks in what they are doing. There are monies that had to be expended to come up with a blue print for how they were going to build the project.

Councilwoman Suttles noted that it said that ADOT and the City required changes in post design service. She asked why they had to spend another $315,000 on a project that has not quite started. 




Mr. Tkach said ADOT required changes were for the slopes which went from 2:1 to 3:1 to 4:1 and back to 3:1. When that is done, it impacts drainage, the easements, some of the cut and fill quantities, which causes a domino effect.  They had no control over ADOT’s request to do that.   

Councilwoman Suttles asked if the changes were made because they did not know where the intersection was going to be or if they just could not decide. Mr. Tkach said that they could not decide.  To date, he still does not believe the Design Report Concept has been signed. ADOT had some changes and the City had some changes. They put in jack and bores for sewer and water and they put in some additional lining at Center Point East and Granite Dells Plaza.

Councilwoman Suttles asked if he did that as the project progressed. Mr. Tkach said that it was moving forward. Typically they spend about 20% of their effort wrapping up the last 5-10% of the design. They cut a year out of the design schedule. They were moving quickly to try to wrap up all of the loose ends. This was one of the loose ends.  They wanted to take advantage of the economy of scale of having a contractor out there, and already having an engineer on board to do that design.

Councilman Bell commented that the total amount of money, including this change order, would be about $2.7 million that they paid Parsons, according to Mr. Nietupski. They know that it is a high percentage, about 16% of the total project. They usually do not see that in engineering projects. He asked if the City should be responsible when ADOT makes these changes.

Mr. Tkach said that the way the process is supposed to work is that   ADOT would approve the Design Report Concept and then they are locked in to the blue print of what they are going to build.  In this case, ADOT changed their minds on several occasions and the City does not have any say when they change their minds. Any time that they have one agency designing to another agencies standards, and then trying to represent two developers interests and get some of that infrastructure put in, it is reasonable that there would be a higher percentage on the design because they are trying to factor all of those things in, plus trying to cut a year out of the design. It is on the high end, but there are extenuating circumstances that attribute to that.


Councilman Bell said that he hates to have the City be at the mercy of ADOT changes, when they do not do their due diligence up front. Mr. Tkach said that he could appreciate the frustration and they are trying hard to develop a good relationship with them. Councilman Bell said that he understood and that it was important.

Councilman Lamerson said that he was confident that if these changes were not necessary from a safety and maintenance issue, Mr. Tkach would not be asking for them. This is the fourth change in the design and they have not even started to build. He asked if there are things that come along, as they are progressing, that say they better change the design, because if they did it the way they were going to, the impact may be different. He asked what was going on with these types of projects where new designs are needed. He said that his job was to figure out how to do these jobs without having these problems.



Mr. Tkach answered that when they have one agency designing to another agencies standards, it was problematic. Not having ADOT sign the Design Report Concept was problematic.  It is unfortunate. These do come up during the course of the design. This was a complicated project. 

Councilman Bell asked if he thought this would be the last change order.  Mr. Tkach said yes.  


Councilman Roecker asked what would happen if they did not pay it, if it does not get approved. Mr. Tkach said that they would have to solicit another engineer to provide those services. It would probably be more expensive because they would be on a learning curve.


Councilman Luzius said that according to the memo, Parsons Group service was for SR 89 and the Granite Dells Parkway project. He asked if that was for Granite Dells Parkway project or was it for Side Road.


Mr. Tkach said that it was both ADOT and City right of way. They have Granite Dells Estates and Center Point East and Side Road. They are all within their street classification. They also have the ADOT roundabouts, the on and off ramps, which are the improvements to the actual corridor.

Councilman Luzius clarified for the public that it is for Side Road interchange. Mr. Tkach answered that it is where the Side Road interchange had been contemplated. It includes some improvements to the ADOT infrastructure, some roundabouts and the City will be building some principle arterial roads – Center Point East and Granite Dells Plaza.

Councilman Luzius said that back when 89A was built, seven to eight years ago, Tom Foster was the ADOT representative in Prescott at the time.  The question was posed why there was not an interchange at Side Road. His answer was that the state was not going to build one and it would probably be 20 years before something needed to be done. That was eight years ago and now the City is spending $2.5 million dollars just to design the interchange which is ultimately going to cost another $17 million.

He understands that the state is contributing $1 million. The City is hamstrung. The ADOT seems to change their mind at a whim and then the citizens have to pay for it. They have no choice but to approve this.


Councilwoman Suttles asked if this engineering service change has anything to do with the bid that goes out. Mr. Tkach said that it was separate. When they hire an engineering firm to provide them with contract documentations; this would be an amendment to their contract.  If there are changes in the design then they have an engineer on record that can go back and effect those changes.


Mr. Creelman, 510 Copper Basin Rd. #44, asked what the need was. There is nothing going in there, and there is a major issue about water.


Mayor Wilson said that it was off agenda. Mr. Creelman asked if this was not Side Kick Road. Mayor Wilson said that it was about an engineering study.


Mr. Creelman said that maybe they just need to cancel the whole thing. It has turned into a nightmare for everybody and they do not even need it.

COUNCILMAN LUZIUS MADE A MOTION TO APPROVE SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 4 TO CONTRACT NO. 07-115 WITH PARSONS TRANSPORTATION GROUP, FOR ENGINEERING POST DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE SR89A-GRANITE DELLS PARKWAY PROJECT IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $315,612.00; SECONDED BY LORA LOPAS; PASSED 6-1 WITH COUNCILWOMAN SUTTLES CASTING THE DISSENTING VOTE.


B. Appointment of Councilwoman Lora Lopas as the Council’s voting representative member to the Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee.

Mayor said that this was a result of Councilman Bell’s resignation and asking for a replacement before the end of his term so that there was a good transition.  


Councilman Bell said he had discussed this with the Centennial Committee and they requested that Lora Lopas be his replacement.  He said that he thought that they should honor that request and that she would make a fine representative.


Councilwoman Lopas said she was truly honored to be on this committee. It was exciting for someone who was born and raised in Arizona and she was eager to get to work with them.

COUNCILMAN BELL MOVED TO APPOINT COUNCILWOMAN LORA LOPAS AS THE COUNCIL’S VOTING REPRESENTATIVE MEMBER TO THE PRESCOTT: THE ARIZONA CENTENNIAL CITY COMMITTEE; SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN LUZIUS; PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.


D.*
Adoption of Resolution No. 3993-1023 – A resolution of the Mayor and Council of the City of Prescott, Yavapai County, Arizona, authorizing the City of Prescott to enter into a Grant-in-Aid Financial Agreement on behalf of the Arizona Wildfire and Incident Management Academy with the Tohono O’Odham Nation, acceptance of a $75,000 grant from it for general operation expenses for the Arizona Wildfire Academy at ERAU and authorizing the Mayor and staff to take any and all steps necessary to accomplish the above.


Chief Willis apologized for this being late to the agenda.  He found out about it late last week and there was a deadline for acceptance of this. They have to notify the grantor by Friday. 


The City of Prescott has played host to The Arizona Wildfire Academy, at Embry Riddle Aeronautical University, for the last 7 years. The Arizona Wildfire Academy brings about 1,000 firefighters in from around the nation, for a one week stint.  It is usually in March and gives the City an infusion of people seeing their City. It is considered one of the premier Wild Fire and Incident Management Training events in the nation. 


A few years ago the City got into a financial arrangement with the Arizona Wildfire Academy where they set up an account for cost recovery. It has never cost the City of Prescott any money. The Arizona Wildfire Academy applied to the Tohono O’Odham Nation for a grant for general operating expenses for $75,000. They received word last week that they have received the grant. The stipulation was that it be overseen by a city government or state government. 


They are a 501C3 organization and there is a pass through agreement.   The City’s Finance Department already has a grant account. Arizona Wildfire Academy will comply with all purchasing and expenditure procedures. He was asking Council to accept the grant on behalf of the Arizona Wildfire Academy and let the City pass the money through to them through the Tohono O’Odham Nation.


Mayor Wilson said that it was excellent news.

COUNCILMAN LUZIUS MADE A MOTION TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 3933-1023; SECONDED BY COUNCILWOMAN SUTTLES; PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.


DE.*
Recess into Executive Session.



COUNCILMAN ROECKER MADE A MOTION TO RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION; SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN BELL; PASSED UNANIMOUSLY

The Regular Voting Meeting of October 13, 2009 recessed at 3:59 p.m. 


EF.*
EXECUTIVE SESSION


1.*
Discussion or consultation for legal advice with the attorney or attorneys of the public body pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3).


1a.
Legal claim pertaining to The Crossings at Willow Creek.


2.*
Discussion or consultation with the attorneys of the public body in order to consider its position and instruct its attorneys regarding the public body's position regarding contracts that are the subject of negotiations, in pending or contemplated litigation or in settlement discussions conducted in order to avoid or resolve litigation, pursuant to ARS Section 38-431.03(A)(4).




a.* 
Asphalt Paving & Supply, Inc. v. Granite Dells Estates Properties, Inc., Granite Dells Estates Properties II, Inc.; City of Prescott.


V.*
POST EXECUTIVE SESSION



A.
Consideration of Settlement Agreement in Asphalt Paving & Supply, Inc. v. Granite Dells Estates Properties, Inc., Granite Dells Estates Properties II, Inc.; City of Prescott.



The Prescott City Council reconvened into Open Session at 4:52 p.m. at which time Mr. Kidd explained that they were proposing a settlement to the lawsuit. He said that a few members of the Council met with representatives of the construction companies involved, and as a result of that there has been a global settlement. 


Mr. Kidd said that there may still be a few word changes but the terms have been agreed upon, and those are that all parties will bear their own attorneys fees. GDEP will contract with AP&S and will then have a change order that allows the City of Prescott to take over administration of the project. There would be no claims going back on the development agreement against the City. 



Michael Allen Peters, 640 West Lee Blvd, said that it was good to have resolution of a pending issue, but without having the benefit of reading the entire judgment his comment was that the Council got them into this problem by giving away an inherent contractual right to GDEP. As a result of that problem, the City is now incurring over $125,000.00 in attorneys fees, plus costs, and they have wasted the taxpayers money. 



He said that it was good to have resolution but in this case, they thought that to walk away when the judge is close to giving the City their attorneys fees was not right.



Mayor Wilson said that the downside of not settling is that they could be in appeals for another year and run up another bill for attorneys fees. He said that they chose to do what they thought was best.



Mr. Peters said that Mr. Kidd had previously told them that the appeal would be handled in house so there would not be any more costs to handle the appeal.


COUNCILMAN LUZIUS MOVED TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR AND CITY ATTORNEY, ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF PRESCOTT, TO ENTER INTO A SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT WITH PLANTIFFS AND CO-DEFENDANTS/CROSS-CLAIMANTS AND TO SIGN SUCH LEGAL DOCUMENTS AS MAY BE NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE SETTLEMENT; SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN ROECKER; PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

VVI.*
ADJOURNMENT



There being no further business to be discussed, the Regular Voting Meeting of the Prescott City Council held October 13, 2009, adjourned at 5:00 p.m.









________________________________









JACK D. WILSON, Mayor


ATTEST:


______________________________


ELIZABETH A. BURKE, City Clerk

CERTIFICATION


I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Regular Voting Meeting of the City Council of the City of Prescott, Arizona held on the 13th day of October, 2009. I further certify the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present.


Dated this ____ day of ___________________, 2009.



AFFIX


       CITY SEAL










________________________________ 








ELIZABETH A. BURKE, City Clerk













